CABINET
3.30 pm WEDNESDAY, 9TH OCTOBER, 2019
COUNCIL CHAMBER

This Agenda has been prepared by the
Democratic Services Department. Any member of the public requiring information should
contact the department on (01685 725284) or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.
Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be found
on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers.

AGENDA
1.

Apologies for absence

2.

Declarations of Interest
Members are reminded of their personal
responsibility to declare any personal and
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members
Code of Conduct
Note:
(a) Members are reminded that they must
identify the item number and subject matter
that their interest relates to and signify the
nature of the personal interest and

(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting
as a consequence of the disclosure of a
prejudicial interest they must notify the
Chair when they leave
OPEN SESSION
Strategic
3.

Amendments to the Community Infrastructure
Levy Regulations 123 - List of Infrastructure
To consider report of
Neighbourhood Services

the

Chief

Officer 5 - 26

CLOSED SESSION
Exempt
In order for the following to be considered in private, it is suggested that the
public be excluded from the meeting on the grounds that it involves the likely
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph/s (14,15) under Part
4 of Schedule 12A Section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972.

4.

Corporate Sustainability Programme - Proposals
To consider report of the Interim Chief Executive

RE-OPENED SESSION
5.

Any Other Business Deemed Urgent by the Chair

27 - 702

COMPOSITION:

Councillors

K O'Neill (Chair)
L Mytton (Vice-Chair)

Councillors
G Thomas

A Barry, C Davies, D Hughes and

together with appropriate officers

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3
Civic Centre, Castle Street,
Merthyr Tydfil CF47 8AN
Main Tel: 01685 725000

www.merthyr.gov.uk

CABINET REPORT
Date Written
Report Author
Service Area
Committee Division
Exempt/Non Exempt
Committee Date

23rd September 2019
Judith Jones/ Craig Watkins
Planning and Countryside
Strategic
Non Exempt
9th October 2019

To: Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Amendments to Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulation 123 List of Infrastructure
1.0

SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1

The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet approval for amendments to the
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulation 123 List of Infrastructure.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS that

2.1

The amended Regulation 123 List of Infrastructure (Appendix 1) for publication on
the Council website for a period of 28 days consultation as set out in paragraph 4.5
be approved.

3.0

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1

In June 2014, the Council adopted the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) as a
mechanism to secure funding towards infrastructure improvements through the
planning system. Alongside the CIL Charging Schedule (the document that outlines
the rate of CIL charged on different types of development across the County
Borough), the Council is also required to produce a Regulation 123 List of
Infrastructure that outlines the different types of infrastructure that can be funded
through CIL.

Page 5

4.0

THE REGULATION 123 LIST OF INFRASTRUCTURE

4.1

The current version of the Regulation 123 List has been in place since CIL was
adopted in 2014. As part of work on the Replacement Local Development Plan
(LDP), the Planning Policy Section has undertaken work in regard of updating the
evidence base of the LDP, including examining the infrastructure required in order
to deliver the strategy of the Replacement LDP. During this work, it has become
apparent that the infrastructure requirements across the County Borough have
evolved and it is now appropriate to make some changes to the Regulation 123
List.

4.2

The first amendment is in relation to the item ‘Core Highway Network
Improvements’. The original list states that the highway improvements that CIL can
be used for are identified in Policy AS10 of the adopted LDP, and in the
Infrastructure Report that informed the preparation of the CIL prior to 2014. In
order to ensure that CIL is spent on appropriate highways infrastructure, it is
proposed to amend this item to state that the highway improvements that can be
funded through CIL are identified in the Replacement LDP Infrastructure Schedule,
and in the Site Allocation Details section of the Replacement LDP.

4.3

The second amendment is in relation to waste management infrastructure. At
present, the list states that CIL can be used towards ‘Upgrading/New Civic
Amenity sites’. In order to give the Council greater flexibility in regard to using CIL
towards waste management infrastructure, it is proposed to amend this item to
state ‘Strategic Waste Management Infrastructure’. This will allow the Council to
potentially spend CIL on a wider range of waste infrastructure items.

4.4

There are other minor changes proposed to the Regulation 123 List in relation to
updating and clarifying some of the explanatory text included in the document. The
amended Regulation 123 List is included as Appendix 1 of this report with any
deleted text shown in a red, strikethrough font. Any new text is shown in a bold,
blue, underlined font.

4.5

It is recommended that the Cabinet consider the updated Regulation 123 List of
Infrastructure, which subject to approval will be published on the Council website
for 28 days, and if there are no adverse comments received then the updated
Regulation 123 List can be adopted. The notification of consultation will be sent to
all elected members; the Council’s internal CIL Steering Group; and other selected
stakeholders from the Planning Policy consultee database.

5.0

FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)

5.1

There are no financial implications to the Authority from this report.

Page 6

6.0

INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being
Objectives

Positive
Impacts

Negative
Impacts

Not
Applicable

4 of 4

0 of 4

0 of 4

5 of 5

0 of 5

0 of 5

10 of 10

0 of 10

0 of 10

1 of 1

0 of 1

0 of 1

2. Sustainable Development
Principles - How have you
considered the five ways of
working:






Long term
Prevention
Integration
Collaboration
Involvement

3. Protected Characteristics
(including Welsh Language)
4. Biodiversity
Summary:
The main positive impact(s) against:





The Well Being Objectives is that the CIL will support the provision of infrastructure and
facilities that can directly assist in the implementation of the four well being objectives.
The Sustainable Development Principles are that the CIL assists in the long term
planning of infrastructure provision in the County Borough, which increases the likelihood
of prevention taking place.
The Protected Characteristics and Welsh Language is that the CIL will facilitate the
delivery of services and infrastructure that can be used by all.
Biodiversity are the CIL can be directly spent on directly enhancing biodiversity and
ecosystem resilience when improving open space provision across the County Borough

There are no negative impacts identified.

JUDITH JONES
CHIEF OFFICER NEIGHBOURHOOD
SERVICES

Page 7

COUNCILLOR DAVID HUGHES
CABINET MEMBER FOR
NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES,
PLANNING AND COUNTRYSIDE

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s)

Document(s) Date

Document Location

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s
Constitution?

No

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect
of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.

Page 8

Merthyr Tydfil County Borough
Council

Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulation 123 List of Infrastructure

June 2014 (Amended October 2019)

Miss J Jones
Chief Officer Planning and Neigbourhood Services
Merthyr Tydfil CBC
Unit 5
Pentrebach
Merthyr Tydfil
CF48 4TQ

Page 9

Introduction
Regulation 123 of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010 (as amended)
sets out the requirement for CIL Charging Authorities to publish a list of the infrastructure
that can be funded through CIL. After 6 April 2014, or upon implementation of the council’s
CIL Charging Schedule (whichever is the earliest), any infrastructure not included within the
council’s published Regulation 123 List Of Infrastructure Regulation 123 List) cannot be
funded through CIL contributions, and can only be funded via Section 106 agreements,
which will be subject to rigorous application of the three statutory tests for obligations:




necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
directly related to the development; and
fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

Preparation of the Regulation 123 List
Regulation 123 lists are not subject to the same procedural requirements that have been set
out for the CIL Charging Schedule. Currently the Regulations only require that regulation 123
lists be published, without the need for consultation or formal procedures. Future changes
to the Regulations may introduce a requirement for consultation, but at the current time
this is not the case. A council may change a regulation 123 list as it sees fit, with the only
requirements being that a list cannot be introduced within 28 days of the implementation of
the previous List, and that appropriate consultation should take place.
In order to engender debate and consideration of what infrastructure should be CIL funded,
the council has chosen to publish this Draft Regulation 123 List for comments alongside the
Draft CIL Charging Schedule, although it must be stressed that comments on the Regulation
123 List will not form part of the Charging Schedule consultation. The council, however,
welcomes comments on the Regulation 123 List and these will be taken into account in
preparing the Regulation 123 List that will be presented at the examination of the CIL
Charging Schedule.
What will the list include?
A regulation 123 list sets out the infrastructure that will be eligible to be funded through CIL.
The Infrastructure can be generic types of infrastructure or more project/item specific. The
Draft Regulation 123 List draws heavily upon the infrastructure requirements set out in the
Adopted Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan up to 2021 (LDP) and the Replacement
Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan (2016-2031) that is scheduled for adoption in early
2020. The Regulation 123 List of Infrastructure reflects the infrastructure requirements
necessary to bring forward development identified in the LDP.
A regulation 123 list should also set out those known, site-specific, matters where section
106 contributions are likely to be the funding mechanism. The principal purpose is to
provide transparency on what the Council intends to fund in whole or part through the levy
and those known matters where section 106 contributions will continue to be sought.

Page 10

Regulation 123 List
The list of infrastructure set out below defines the infrastructure types that are eligible to be
funded through CIL. Please note that the list is not a definitive list of what will be funded
and provided. More it ring fences the types of infrastructure that CIL can fund, subject to
council priorities and the levels of available CIL funding. The infrastructure listed below will
be eligible to be funded through the Community Infrastructure Levy.

THE MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL REGULATION 123 LIST OF
INFRASTRUCTURE

INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECT
Core Highway Network Improvements (as
identified in Policy AS10 of LDP, and Appendix 1 of
the Infrastructure Report the Replacement LDP
Infrastructure Schedule and Site Allocation
Details)
Strategic Drainage Network
Education Provision (schools)
Upgrade/new Civic Amenity sites
Strategic Waste Management Infrastructure
Upgrade existing Leisure facilities provision
Off-site formal leisure facilities (eg Sports pitches
and changing facilities, Multi-use games areas,
Neighbourhood equipped area for play)
Strategic Public Transport Infrastructure (does not
include site specific links to strategic network such
as new bus stop within a development to improve
accessibility, or short length of cycleway to link a
site to national or local route)

Page 11

TYPE
PHYSICAL

PHYSICAL
SOCIAL
PHYSICAL
SOCIAL
GREEN

PHYSICAL

Relationship between CIL and S106 Contributions
In order to ensure that planning obligations and the CIL can operate in a complementary
way, the ClL Regulations scale-back the way planning obligations operate. Limitations are
therefore placed on the use of planning obligations in three respects:




putting the policy tests on the use of planning obligations (set out in Wales in
Circular 13/97, Planning Obligations) on a statutory basis for developments which
are capable of being charged the CIL;
ensuring the local use of the CIL and planning obligations do not overlap; and
limiting pooled contributions from planning obligations towards infrastructure which
may be funded by the CIL.

The CIL regulations enforce the policy tests on the use of planning obligations. The statutory
tests are intended to clarify the purpose of planning obligations in light of the CIL.
From 6 April 2010 it has been unlawful for a planning obligation to be taken into account
when determining a planning application for a development that is capable of being charged
the levy, whether there is a local levy in operation or not, if the obligation does not meet all
of the following tests:




necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
directly related to the proposed development; and
fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

Conversely, the CIL is intended to provide infrastructure to support the development of an
area, rather than to make individual planning applications acceptable in planning terms. As a
result, there is likely to be site-specific impact mitigation requirements without which a
development should not be granted planning permission. Some of these needs may be
provided for through the CIL but others may not, particularly if they are very local in their
impact. There is therefore still a legitimate role for development-specific planning
obligations to enable the Council to be confident that the specific consequences of a
development can be mitigated.
The Council will therefore continue to secure Planning Obligations where they are necessary
to remove obstacles to planned development and are therefore critical to the delivery of the
site, for example to provide direct site access, flood protection and wildlife protection
measures and for on-site leisure provision such as open space, Local areas for play (LAPs)
and Local equipped areas for play (LEAPs).
Further, s106 contributions may still be sought for infrastructure, where:



it can meet the above tests; and
the Council has indicated that this type of infrastructure item will not be funded
through CIL. (ie it does not appear on the Reg 123 list)

Affordable housing will continue to be funded through S106 obligations. The proposed
levels of CIL have been set at a level that has been assessed as viable with the provision of

Page 12

affordable housing, and it is therefore expected that on-site provision of affordable housing
will be achieved.
Implications on Local Development Plan Policy
It is anticipated that a consequence of the implementation of CIL will be that, at first review
of the Local Development Plan, several policies will require revision. At this time, these are
identified as:





Policy BW17: Securing Community Infrastructure Benefits;
Policy AS10: Core Highway Network Improvements;
Policy AS11: Public Transport – Rail;
Policy AS12: Public Transport – Road.

Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015
Integrated Impact Assessment
(includes Equalities, Welsh Language, Sustainability and Biodiversity)

Before completing the Impact Assessment PLEASE REFER TO THE CORRESPONDING GUIDANCE DOCUMENT which provides essential background
information.
An Integrated Impact Assessment MUST be completed for:
1. Any project (i.e. something that has a start and end date and is different from day to day business).
2. Where you are implementing significant change e.g. service provision.
3. For any Council / Cabinet report that is not part of an above mentioned project or significant change.

Page 15

Title of Project / Report:

Officer completing Impact Assessment:

Amendments to Community Infrastructure Levy Regulation 123 List of
Infrastructure
Craig Watkins

Lead Officer / Project Manager:

Judith Jones

Service:

Planning and Countryside

Impact Assessment completion date:

23rd September 2019

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal:
In June 2014, the Council adopted the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) as a mechanism to secure funding towards infrastructure improvements
through the planning system. Alongside the CIL Charging Schedule (the document that outlines the rate of CIL charged on different types of development
across the County Borough), the Council is also required to produce a Regulation 123 List of Infrastructure that outlines the different types of infrastructure
that can be funded through CIL.

The current version of the Regulation 123 List has been in place since CIL was adopted in 2014. As part of work on the Replacement Local Development
Plan (LDP), the Planning Policy Section has undertaken work in regard of updating the evidence base of the LDP, including examining the infrastructure
required in order to deliver the strategy of the Replacement LDP. During this work, it has become apparent that the infrastructure requirements across the
County Borough have evolved and it is now appropriate to make some changes to the Regulation 123 List.
1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being Objectives
Does your proposal help to deliver any of the Council’s Well-being Objectives identified below?
Well-being Objectives

Page 16

Best Start to Life
Children and young people get
the best start to life and are
equipped with the skills they
need to be successful learners
and confident individuals.

Does your proposal have a positive
Why have you come to this
What actions have been/will be
or negative impact on the Council’s
decision? Please provide an
taken to better contribute to
Well-being Objectives? Please place
explanation
positive impacts and/or mitigate
an X in the relevant box
any negative impacts?
Positive
Negative
N/A
x
CIL
will
assist
in
providing An internal CIL steering groups is
infrastructure and facilities that will be already setup that considers what CIL
able to be used by all groups.
can be spent on.

Working Life
People feel supported to
develop the skills required to
meet the needs of businesses
with a developing, safe
infrastructure making Merthyr
Tydfil an attractive destination.

x

In particular, CIL can be used towards
funding
of
education
provision
(schools), and play facilities that can
contribute directly to children’s
wellbeing.
CIL
will
assist
in
providing
infrastructure and facilities that will be
able to be used by all groups.

The group consists of a range of
appropriate Council officers, and
elected members to ensure that CIL is
spent on appropriate infrastructure.

In particular, CIL can be used towards
funding of core highway network
improvements and strategic public
transport infrastructure.

The group consists of a range of
appropriate Council officers, and
elected members to ensure that CIL is
spent on appropriate infrastructure.

An internal CIL steering groups is
already setup that considers what CIL
can be spent on.

Environmental Well-being
Communities protect, enhance
and promote our environment
and countryside.

Living Well
People are empowered to live
independently within their
communities, where they feel
safe and enjoy good physical
and mental health.

x

x

CIL
will
assist
in
providing An internal CIL steering groups is
infrastructure and facilities that will be already setup that considers what CIL
able to be used by all groups.
can be spent on.
In particular, CIL can be used towards
funding of improving and creating
better quality open spaces across the
County Borough.
CIL
will
assist
in
providing
infrastructure and facilities that will be
able to be used by all groups.

The group consists of a range of
appropriate Council officers, and
elected members to ensure that CIL is
spent on appropriate infrastructure.
An internal CIL steering groups is
already setup that considers what CIL
can be spent on.

In particular, CIL can be used towards
environmental improvements (open
space, highway improvements etc.)
that can assist in enabling people to
live independently in a safe
environment.

The group consists of a range of
appropriate Council officers, and
elected members to ensure that CIL is
spent on appropriate infrastructure.

Page 17

Sources of evidence to support the above:
MTCBC Regulation 123 List of Infrastructure - June 2014 (amended October 2019)
MTCBC Replacement Local Development Plan - https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/replacement-localdevelopment-plan-2016-2031/

2. Sustainable Development Principles (The Five Ways of Working)
Does your proposal demonstrate you have met the sustainable development principles (five ways of working)?
Five Ways of
Working
Long Term Thinking and
planning for the
long term.

Page 18

Prevention Preventing
problems before
they happen.

How does your proposal demonstrate you have met the
five ways of working?
The infrastructure that CIL can be spent on has been
identified as part of the Local Development Plan process. The
LDP is the Council’s land use plan that runs for 15 years, up
until 2031.

Are there any additional actions to be taken to better
contribute to the five ways of working and/or mitigate any
negative impacts?
An internal CIL steering groups is already setup that considers
what CIL can be spent on in the short, medium and long term.
The group consists of a range of appropriate Council officers,
and elected members to ensure that CIL is spent on
appropriate infrastructure in order to meet the five ways of
working.

The LDP AMR, review process, and close monitoring of other
evidence will also assist in ensuring that this way of working is
adhered to in the future.
By identifying and contributing towards the County Borough’s An internal CIL steering groups is already setup that considers
infrastructure requirements until 2031, the CIL will help in what CIL can be spent on.
preventing problems such as highways congestion and oversubscribed schools, before these issues occur.
The group consists of a range of appropriate Council officers,
and elected members to ensure that CIL is spent on
appropriate infrastructure in order to meet the five ways of
working.
The LDP AMR, review process, and close monitoring of other
evidence will also assist in ensuring that this way of working is
adhered to in the future.

Integration Integrating with
other strategies.

Collaboration Collaborating with
others.

Page 19

Involvement Involving people
and communities.

When CIL was initially prepared, all appropriate Council
departments were involved to ensure that the infrastructure
identified in the Regulation 123 List is consistent and integrates
with other Council strategies, such as the Open Space
Strategy and 21st Century School building programme.

An internal CIL steering groups is already setup that considers
what CIL can be spent on.
The group consists of a range of appropriate Council officers,
and elected members to ensure that CIL is spent on
appropriate infrastructure in order to meet the five ways of
working.

The LDP AMR, review process, and close monitoring of other
evidence will also assist in ensuring that this way of working is
adhered to in the future.
The CIL Steering Group ensures that a collaborative approach An internal CIL steering groups is already setup that considers
is taken by including representatives from the relevant Council what CIL can be spent on.
departments, and elected members.
The group consists of a range of appropriate Council officers,
When CIL was being prepared, work on the evidence base and elected members to ensure that CIL is spent on
was jointly commissioned with Caerphilly and RCT CBCs, appropriate infrastructure in order to meet the five ways of
showing collaboration across the South East Wales region.
working.
The LDP AMR, review process, and close monitoring of other
evidence will also assist in ensuring that this way of working is
adhered to in the future.
Having elected members sit on the CIL Steering Group An internal CIL steering groups is already setup that considers
provides the mechanism for the general public to propose what CIL can be spent on.
suggestions for projects that CIL can be spent on.
The group consists of a range of appropriate Council officers,
Initial preparation of the CIL (and the LDP) was also subject to and elected members to ensure that CIL is spent on
substantial public consultation.
appropriate infrastructure in order to meet the five ways of
working.
The LDP AMR, review process, and close monitoring of other
evidence will also assist in ensuring that this way of working is
adhered to in the future.

Sources of evidence to support the above:
MTCBC Regulation 123 List of Infrastructure - June 2014 (amended October 2019)
MTCBC Replacement Local Development Plan - https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/replacement-localdevelopment-plan-2016-2031/

3. Protected Characteristics (including Welsh Language)
Does your proposal directly impact on service users, employees and/or the wider community, including the nine protected characteristic groups
and Welsh language as identified below?
Protected
Characteristics

Age

Page 20

Disability

Does your proposal have a positive
or negative impact on service users,
employees and/or the wider
community, including the nine
protected characteristic groups and
Welsh language? Please place an X
in the relevant box
Positive
Negative
N/A
x

x

Why have you come to this
decision? Please provide an
explanation

What actions have been/will be
taken to better contribute to
positive impacts and/or mitigate
any negative impacts?

CIL
will
assist
in
providing An internal CIL steering groups is
infrastructure and facilities that will be already setup that considers what CIL
able to be used by all groups.
can be spent on.
The group consists of a range of
appropriate Council officers, and
elected members to ensure that CIL is
spent on appropriate infrastructure.
CIL
will
assist
in
providing An internal CIL steering groups is
infrastructure and facilities that will be already setup that considers what CIL
able to be used by all groups.
can be spent on.
The group consists of a range of
appropriate Council officers, and
elected members to ensure that CIL is
spent on appropriate infrastructure.

Gender Reassignment

x

CIL
will
assist
in
providing An internal CIL steering groups is
infrastructure and facilities that will be already setup that considers what CIL
able to be used by all groups.
can be spent on.
The group consists of a range of
appropriate Council officers, and
elected members to ensure that CIL is
spent on appropriate infrastructure.

Protected
Characteristics

Marriage and Civil
Partnership

Does your proposal have a positive
or negative impact on service users,
employees and/or the wider
community, including the nine
protected characteristic groups and
Welsh language? Please place an X
in the relevant box
Positive
Negative
N/A
x

Why have you come to this
decision? Please provide an
explanation

What actions have been/will be
taken to better contribute to
positive impacts and/or mitigate
any negative impacts?

CIL
will
assist
in
providing An internal CIL steering groups is
infrastructure and facilities that will be already setup that considers what CIL
can be spent on.
able to be used by all groups.
The group consists of a range of
appropriate Council officers, and
elected members to ensure that CIL is
spent on appropriate infrastructure.

Pregnancy and Maternity

x

Page 21
Race

CIL
will
assist
in
providing An internal CIL steering groups is
infrastructure and facilities that will be already setup that considers what CIL
can be spent on.
able to be used by all groups.
The group consists of a range of
appropriate Council officers, and
elected members to ensure that CIL is
spent on appropriate infrastructure.

x

CIL
will
assist
in
providing An internal CIL steering groups is
infrastructure and facilities that will be already setup that considers what CIL
can be spent on.
able to be used by all groups.
The group consists of a range of
appropriate Council officers, and
elected members to ensure that CIL is
spent on appropriate infrastructure.

Religion or Belief

x

CIL
will
assist
in
providing An internal CIL steering groups is
infrastructure and facilities that will be already setup that considers what CIL
can be spent on.
able to be used by all groups.

Protected
Characteristics

Does your proposal have a positive
or negative impact on service users,
employees and/or the wider
community, including the nine
protected characteristic groups and
Welsh language? Please place an X
in the relevant box
Positive
Negative
N/A

Why have you come to this
decision? Please provide an
explanation

What actions have been/will be
taken to better contribute to
positive impacts and/or mitigate
any negative impacts?

The group consists of a range of
appropriate Council officers, and
elected members to ensure that CIL is
spent on appropriate infrastructure.
Sex (Gender)

x

The group consists of a range of
appropriate Council officers, and
elected members to ensure that CIL is
spent on appropriate infrastructure.

Page 22
Sexual Orientation

CIL
will
assist
in
providing An internal CIL steering groups is
infrastructure and facilities that will be already setup that considers what CIL
can be spent on.
able to be used by all groups.

x

CIL
will
assist
in
providing An internal CIL steering groups is
infrastructure and facilities that will be already setup that considers what CIL
can be spent on.
able to be used by all groups.
The group consists of a range of
appropriate Council officers, and
elected members to ensure that CIL is
spent on appropriate infrastructure.

Welsh Language

x

CIL
will
assist
in
providing An internal CIL steering groups is
infrastructure and facilities that will be already setup that considers what CIL
can be spent on.
able to be used by all groups.
The group consists of a range of
appropriate Council officers, and
elected members to ensure that CIL is

Protected
Characteristics

Does your proposal have a positive
or negative impact on service users,
employees and/or the wider
community, including the nine
protected characteristic groups and
Welsh language? Please place an X
in the relevant box
Positive
Negative
N/A

Why have you come to this
decision? Please provide an
explanation

What actions have been/will be
taken to better contribute to
positive impacts and/or mitigate
any negative impacts?

spent on appropriate infrastructure.

Sources of evidence to support the above:
MTCBC Regulation 123 List of Infrastructure - June 2014 (amended October 2019)
MTCBC Replacement Local Development Plan - https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/replacement-localdevelopment-plan-2016-2031/

Page 23

4. Biodiversity
Does your proposal directly impact on Biodiversity?
Biodiversity

Maintain and enhance
biodiversity and ecosystem
resilience

Does your proposal have a positive
or negative impact on Biodiversity?
Please place an X in the relevant
box
Positive
Negative
N/A
x

Why have you come to this
decision? Please provide an
explanation

What actions have been/will be
taken to better contribute to
positive impacts and/or mitigate
any negative impacts?

CIL
will
assist
in
providing
infrastructure and facilities that will be
able to be used by all groups. There is
scope for CIL to be spent on directly
enhancing biodiversity and ecosystem
resilience when improving open space
provision across the County Borough.

An internal CIL steering groups is
already setup that considers what CIL
can be spent on.
The group consists of a range of
appropriate Council officers, and
elected members to ensure that CIL is
spent on appropriate infrastructure.

Page 24

Sources of evidence to support the above:
MTCBC Regulation 123 List of Infrastructure - June 2014 (amended October 2019)
MTCBC Replacement Local Development Plan - https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/replacement-localdevelopment-plan-2016-2031/

5. Summary
As a result of completing this Impact Assessment, how many positive and negative impacts does
your proposal have? This section should then be included in the related Council/Cabinet report.
Please see the example provided in the guidance document.

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being
Objectives
2. Sustainable Development
Principles - How have you
considered the five ways of
working:
 Long term
 Prevention
 Integration
 Collaboration
 Involvement
3. Protected Characteristics (including
Welsh Language)
4. Biodiversity

Positive
Impacts

Negative
Impacts

Not
Applicable

4 of 4

0 of 4

0 of 4

5 of 5

0 of 5

0 of 5

10 of 10

0 of 10

0 of 10

1 of 1

0 of 1

0 of 1

Summary:
The main positive impact(s) against:
 The Well Being Objectives is that the CIL will support the provision of infrastructure and
facilities that can directly assist in the implementation of the four well being objectives.
 The Sustainable Development Principles are that the CIL assists in the long term
planning of infrastructure provision in the County Borough, which increases the likelihood
of prevention taking place.
 The Protected Characteristics and Welsh Language is that the CIL will facilitate the
delivery of services and infrastructure that can be used by all.
 Biodiversity are the CIL can be directly spent on directly enhancing biodiversity and
ecosystem resilience when improving open space provision across the County Borough
There are no negative impacts identified.

Page 25

6. Actions
Based on the summary of your positive and negative impacts, identified in Section 5 above, will you need to make changes to your proposal to
better contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts? Please identify any further actions you will need to undertake to better
contribute to positive impacts and/or mitigate any negative impacts.
What are you going to
do?
N/a

Estimated completion
date
N/a

Who will be
responsible?
N/a

Timelines/Milestones
e.g. 6 months/over a
year, etc.
N/a

Progress

N/a

7. Version Control

Page 26

The Impact Assessment should be used at the earliest stages of decision making, and then honed and refined throughout the decision making
process. Please use the table below to keep a record of this process so that we can demonstrate how we have considered and built in the sustainable
development principles where possible.
Version
No.

Decision making stage

Date considered

Brief description of any amendments made following
consideration

1.0

Cabinet Report

23rd September
2019

n/a

8. Sign off section
Approved by:________________________
Job Title:____________________________
Approval date:_______________________

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 27

Agenda Item 4

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 39

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 43

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 55

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 67

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 81

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 93

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 105

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 119

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 135

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 151

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 167

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 183

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 197

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 213

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 229

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 245

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 263

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 281

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 295

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 297

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 309

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 321

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 333

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 347

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 359

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 383

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 399

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 415

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 417

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 435

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 443

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 457

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 473

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 491

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 505

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 519

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 541

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 557

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 575

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 591

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 609

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 611

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 641

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 643

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 663

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 693

This page is intentionally left blank

